
  

 

Hanover Church of the Brethren 

Spring Council Meeting 

May 19, 2021 — 7:00 pm 

 



2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Opening Meditation ................................................................................................................... 2 

Agenda ....................................................................................................................................... 3 

Fall Council Meeting Minutes, October 21, 2020 ................................................................. 4-5 

Pastor’s Report ....................................................................................................................... 6-7 

Financial Report  .................................................................................................................. 8-13 

Commission Reports .......................................................................................................... 14-15 

Other Reports ..................................................................................................................... 16-17 

New Business Items ................................................................................................................. 17 

Child Protection Policy ...................................................................................................... 18-23 

__________________________________________________ 

Spring Council Meeting Opening Devotion 

May 19, 2021  

—Quiet Meditation— 

WELCOME 

*Litany of Praise 

 Leader: May the Spirit of God be upon you. 

 Cong:   We gather and we worship the God who does wondrous things. 

 Leader: May the Spirit of Wisdom and understanding be with you. 

 Cong:   God of Justice and love, be present in our time together.  

 Leader: May the Spirit of counsel and might guide you. 

 All:       Renew us this day as we come together in your Holy name.  

*Gathering Song              “Move in Our Midst”                                 Blue 418  

*Prayer of Unity  

O Lord, grant us understanding in our relationships with one another.  

Grant us a vision to see where love is stronger than hate.  Guide us 

this day so that your power might lead us to a higher plane of unity.  

All this we pray in the name of Jesus the Christ, your Son and our 

Savior. Amen. 

Scripture Reading  John 8:32; 14:6; 17:17; 18:38 

Meditation    “What Is Truth?”  Moderator/Pastor Dick Godfrey 

Prayer 



3 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 

May 19, 2021 —7:00 pm 

 

1) Approval of Agenda 

2) Approval of Fall Council Meeting Minutes from October 21, 2020 

3) Board Chair Report—No Report 

5) Pastor’s Report 

6) Financial Report—submitted by Alan Bridenbaugh 

7) Commission Reports  

 A. Christian Education—submitted by Melissa Godfrey 

 B. Fellowship & Personnel—submitted by Kim Smith 

 C. Ministry & Worship—submitted by Bob Long 

 D. Outreach—submitted by Phyllis Fuhrman 

 E. Property & Finance—submitted by Bob Meminger 

8) Other Reports  

 A.  Deacon Report—submitted by Sue Ambrosius 

 B.  Membership Report—submitted by Suzanne Werner 

 C.  Memorial Gifts Report—submitted by Pastor Gerry 

 D.  Women’s Fellowship—submitted by Lona Bridenbaugh 

 E.  Youth Report—submitted by Pastor Gerry 

 F. Glow Group Report—submitted by Pastor Gerry  

9) Old Business  

  A. Report of Faith in Action Grant  

  B.   

  C.   

  D.    

10) New Business     

A. Approve Changes to Child Protection Policy as recommended from Church Board 

B. Prioritizing of facility needs  

C.   

11) Closing Prayer and Adjournment 

 
 

 



4 

 

FALL COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 
October 21, 2020 

 
Hanover Church of the Brethren Fall Council Meeting met with 27 members present. 
 
The meeting was opened with a hymn, a reading and unison prayer.     
 
Moderator, Richard Godfrey read Scripture from Daniel 9 offered a mediation and prayer.  
 
1.  A motion was made by Mike Lawrence to approve the agenda and seconded by Frank 

McDonald.  The motion passed and the agenda was approved. 
 
2.  A motion was made by Bob Long to approve the Spring Council Meeting Minutes from 

June 10, 2020, which was seconded by Phyllis Fuhrman.  The motion passed and the 
minutes were approved. 

 
3. Board Chair, Scott Ruth: No report. 
 
4. Pastor Gerry presented her report as written.   
 
5.  Alan Bridenbaugh presented the financial report as written and noted that the investments 

were recovering from the stock market downturn from earlier in the year and that Out-
reach was almost fully funded.  

 
A motion was made by Paul Bollinger to accept the Board Chair Report, Pastor’s Report and 
Financial Report as presented or written, which motion was seconded by Phyllis Fuhrman.  
The motion passed and the reports were all accepted. 
 
6.  Commission Reports: 
 

A.  Paul Bollinger presented the Christian Education report as printed.  
 
B.  Kim Smith presented the Fellowship and Personnel repor t as pr inted.   
 
C.  Dick Ambrosius presented the Ministry and Worship repor t as pr inted. 
 
D.  Phyllis Fuhrman presented the repor t for  Outreach as pr inted.  
 
E.  Ed Morr is presented the Proper ty and Finance repor t as pr inted. 

 
A motion was made by Sue Ambrosius to accept the Commission Reports as presented, 
which motion was seconded by Phyllis Fuhrman.  The motion passed and the reports were all 
accepted. 
 
7.  Other Reports: 
  

A.  Sue Ambrosius presented the Deacon Report as printed.  
 

B.  Membership Report.  The report is as printed in council packet. 
 

C.  Memorial Gifts Report.  The report is as printed in council packet.    
 

D.  Lona Bridenbaugh present the Women’s Fellowship report as printed.  



5 

 

 
     E.  Youth Repor t.  The repor t was presented as pr inted in council packet.   
 
A motion was made by Paul Bollinger to accept all the other reports as written and presented, 
which motion was seconded by Fran Smith.  The motion passed and the other reports were all 
accepted. 
 
8. Old Business: 
      Report on Building Repair Fund:  No repor t was made.  See Building Repair  line 

items of budget. 
 
      Report on Faith in Action Grant:  Expenses still need to be calculated to repor t how 

funds were used. 
 
9. New Business: 

 
      A. Slate for 2021. The Slate for  2021 was presented by Scott Ruth. Motion was made 

by Paul Bollinger to approve the Slate for 2021.  A vote was taken and the motion passed. 
 
      B.  Approve Board Recommendation of Dick Godfrey to the Church Board for com-

pletion of term through 2020 of Kenneth Duckworth, who resigned in August, 2020.  
Item presented which included discussion and addition that Dick Godfrey not serve on 
Ministry and Worship Commission or Christian Education Commission because of ap-
pearance of conflict of interest.  By a vote the Motion passed.  

 
      C.  Budget for 2021.  A vote was taken on the Church Board recommended Budget 

the “matching” funds.  
 
10. & 11.   The meeting closed with a time of sharing of joys and concerns and prayer. 

 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
      /s/ Angela Ruth, Church Clerk 



6 

 

BOARD CHAIR REPORT—Scott Ruth 

No Report  

 

PASTOR’S REPORT— Pastor Gerry Godfrey 

  
Pastoral Statistics for Spring Council 2021 

10/1/20 – 5/2/21 

2 anointings 10 vacation days 0 hospital visits 9 staff meetings 

47 meetings 3 Glow group 7  Connections 2 funerals 

3 Deacon meetings 1  membership class 28 Home visits 2 taping service 

1 teacher training 16 Home communion 26 teaching children SS      1 Fall Council 

3 funeral planning 1 report Faith/Action 4 meetings Youth Dir. 5  youth group 

2 planning youth Sun 2 spiritual renewal 1 spiritual renewal lunch     help Green Drop 

2 snow days 2 vaccination/COVID help/Yard Sale 2 pastor/cong. meet 

1 Hanover ministerium   3 plan AARP taxes 1 Good Friday Choir taping   13 prayer group 

2 deacon meeting 2 game night 1 renewal wedding vows     2 CEU’s  

4 planning Lent/Easter    1 eggstravaganza 36 shut-ins 2 food to HACC 

5 benevolence consults   3 District Board 5 District Ministry 1 All Saints 

Pray Hanover families 31 sermons 11 counseling 2 bread and cup 

1 deacon installation 1 district office visit 1 board installation 3 Brethren zone 

1 Easter sunrise 1 planning Easter sunrise 1 Easter Worship   1 ice cream social 

1 Christmas Eve Service  2 CAS “giving tree” 1 hanging of Green              1 help truck stop cookies 

1 blood donation  prepare Ash Wednesday Ash Wednesday service  4 planning Lent/Easter 

36 phone call visits  2 planning Advent/Christmas 

 

 This has been one of the most difficult years of my pastoral ministry with trying to “re-think” 

worship and how we will worship here at Hanover COB.  I truly appreciate the help of the leadership team/

board in making some of the decisions so that together we could move through the changes we needed to 

make.  I also appreciate the help of Alan Bridenbaugh and Ben Warfield who record the services and get 

them posted on our “home page.”   

I want to thank the staff here at Hanover: Suzanne for her efficiency; Roxie for her great music 

selections for the choir and her gift of leadership as “music director”; Bev for the way she brings worship to 

our sanctuary through her organ music; and Melissa for keeping everything “in order” around the church.  

We have a very dedicated staff and I hope you thank each of them for their contributions especially as we 

moved through changes because of COVID-19. 



7 

 

 As you can see with my statistical report, there has been no visiting in the hospitals 

when people have “procedures” in order to keep COVID or other diseases from spreading.  I 

have also been calling those who have “sheltered at home” during these times in order to keep 

in touch.  The good thing is that in these past months some people have allowed the “masked 

preacher” to visit in their homes.  I think the pastoral presence has been important to those who 

otherwise have been isolated in their homes.   

 Not everything about COVID-19 has been negative and we will continue to analyze that 

over the next years.  We have seen how wearing the masks has been a visual way we can care 

for others and many have certainly seen the benefit of increased hand washing to prevent the 

spread of germs.  COVID-19 has also given us an opportunity to use our gifts to glorify the 

name of God.  What gifts have been stirred within you as you reached out to others during this 

time?  What new gift have you discovered you have?   

 Above all, let us remember that change is not all bad.  It is just a signal of an identified 

need in response to present circumstances.  Just think where we would be if we had never had 

the Wright Brothers take to the air or were still using coal oil lamps to light our houses in the 

dark of winter!  The development of electricity brought so much change to our homes, to our 

businesses and to our world.   

People coming together and using their intelligence for the “collective good” of God’s 

people can certainly benefit many.  Let us move forward, together!     

PASTOR  GERRY 



8 

 

 



9 

 



10 

 



11 

 



12 

 



13 

 
 



14 

 

COMMISSION REPORTS 
 

Christian Education: Melissa Godfrey, Michael Lawrence, Natlie DeRita 

 Held Game Night on October 30: Halloween games, slime making, pumpkin decorating and 

pumpkin bowling, 32 people attended. 

 Accepted the resignation of Youth Director, Nathan Murray. His last day was October 31, 2020. 

 Recognized our teachers by handing out thank you cards with a gift card in them. 

 Celebrated Jesus’s Birthday on December 20; handed out 5 dozen cupcakes in individual 

containers. 

 Held a socially distanced Easter Eggstravaganza on April 3.  We had 19 children signed up.  A 

total of 41 people were present 

 Held Game Night on April 16; Chair Volleyball, 17 people attended. 

 Held Sunday School Appreciation Day on Sunday April 25.   Handed out flowers to 26 people 

and provided snacks and coffee/milk between Sunday School and the Church service. 

 

Fellowship & Personnel: Kim Smith, Amanda Jacobs-Womer, Fran Smith  

 November 8, 2020 Spiritual Renewal Carry in Lunch. Carry in lunch provided by congregation 

members. Fellowship and Personnel and family helped serve as folks went through the line to 

provide food safety and not spread germs due to Covid. There were 32 people in attendance 

including our guest speaker and her husband. 

 December 2020 – The Congregation Christmas Luncheon was cancelled due to Covid. 

 January 2021– Ice Cream Social was scheduled for April 24, 2021 in hopes that Covid would be 

under control more and it would allow more folks to attend. 

 March 2021 – No Activities 

 April 3, 2021 – Easter Eggstravaganza – Our commission provided the snacks that were packed 

in each child's bag to take home and enjoy. 

 April 4, 2021 – Easter Sunrise Breakfast - 31 people attended. We served egg and cheese 

casserole, ham and egg casserole, provided by JoAnn Kline and Melissa Godfrey, fresh fruit 

provided by Muriel Myers – Thank you ladies, homemade cinnamon rolls, biscuits, orange 

juice, cranberry juice, milk & chocolate milk, coffee. Thank you to JoAnn Kline, Melissa 

Godfrey and Edna Markle for helping. 

 April 24, 2021 – Ice Cream Social – 15 people attended. Thank you to Frannie Smith, Dave 

Smith, Dick and Sue Ambrosius, Alan and Lona Bridenbaugh and Pastors Dick and Gerry for 

providing ice cream. We had guessing games and a game of questions – Everyone won a prize. 

Thank you to all that attended. 

 

Ministry & Worship: Bob Long, Connie Morris, Darlene Bollinger 

 Kim Smith has accepted to coordinate with Pastor Gerry for dramas. 

 Placed hymnals, pink cards and attendance pads in pews. 

 Had a successful Spiritual Renewal with Donita Keister, November 7 & 8, 2020. 

 Secured pulpit supply for Pastor Gerry’s 2021 vacation: April 25, May 9, July 4, August 1 &  8. 

 Administrative Professional Day - April 21, 2021. To show our appreciation for our church 

secretary, Suzanne, we gave her a gift card. 

 Payed all our Ministry and Worship bills to date in a timely fashion. 

 



15 

 

Outreach: Phyllis Fuhrman, Frank McDonald, Dick Godfrey 

 Blanket Sunday offering was $755 on October 25, 2020. 

 In November 2020 we collected 38 pints of blood with Central Penn Blood Bank. 

 We packed 238 bags of cookies for Carlisle Truck Stop Ministry on December 14 and 

delivered to Carlisle. 

 Clean-up bucket offering was $825 and 26 clean-up buckets were packed and taken to New 

Windsor. 

 On February 27 we held a clothing drive. Collected and delivered 1300 pounds of clothing to 

Community Aid. 

 Meat Canning offering on March 7 and 14 was $535. 

 Fran Smith and Phyllis Fuhrman made 36 hygiene kits and they will be delivered to New 

Windsor soon.  

 

Property & Finance: Bob Meminger , Thomas Ruth, Alan Br idenbaugh  

 Maintenance activities were reduced during the past six months due to the pandemic 

disruption.  Emphasis was placed on ensuring preventative hygiene measures such as placing 

hand sanitizers around the building and maintaining disinfection supplies.   

 Emergency lighting improvement and exit signs placement are currently being addressed.   

 Routine inspections of the fire extinguishers and elevator were paid for.   

 Snow removal expenses ran over $2800.    

 A sign post holding two signs advertising our church and the Four Square Church (now called 

Emerge Hanover) was located at the northeast corner of Broadway and Wilson Ave. We are 

not sure when it was erected but feel it was over twenty five years ago.  It held metal signs 

and was not constructed to meet current Penn Dot standards. This sign was severely damaged 

by a truck last year. Hanover Borough was consulted about putting the sign back up. A new 

stop sign has since been put up at the location where our sign was. There has been a higher 

than average amount of accidents at that location over the past several years. Placement of the 

signs in that area would reduce the sight vision of drivers pulling out onto Broadway.  The 

other corners at that intersection would not be appropriate due to other obstacles. The 

Borough is planning to conduct a traffic study at that intersection and does not feel that a sign 

location in that area would be appropriate. The Church Board feels many people are using 

geographic information systems to find addresses today so it raises the question "is the sign 

needed?"  The metal signs show their age. The post and anchor system would need to be 

rebuilt. The Church Board feels that we need to support public safety therefore a sign is not 

needed at that corner. A verbal explanation was given to some members of Emerge Hanover 

recently and an email explaining the situation has been sent to them.  I have not had a 

response yet.  



16 

 

OTHER REPORTS 
 

Deacon Report - Submitted by Sue Ambrosius, Deacon Chair 

 November 7, 2020 – prepared & served refreshments following the Spiritual Renewal Service. 

 December 24, 2020 –bread & cup communion at the Christmas Eve Service; 52 attended.  

Packaged elements distributed to each individual prior to entering sanctuary. 

 January 3, 2021 –reaffirmation of deacons during morning worship; 8 present.  

 March 28, 2021, Palm Sunday – bread and cup communion during morning worship instead of 

the traditional Maundy Thursday Love Feast, due to COVID restrictions; 67 attended.  Packaged 

elements distributed to individuals prior to entering sanctuary. 

 Updated deacon lists as needed.  

 Assist pastor with anointings. 

 Visits and contacts with members as called. 

We ask you the congregation, to prayerfully seek God’s leading regarding which individuals in our 

membership should be called to serve as deacons for the next 4-year term beginning January 1, 2022.  

Please write their names on the attached slip of paper to be collected during our council meeting.  

You may also opt to place them in my mailbox.  Thank you for your participation. 

 

Membership Report - Submitted by Suzanne W erner, Secretary of Hanover COB  

Our church membership as of October 1, 2020 was 177 

Feb. 21 Clarence Berg, Jr. death - 176 

As of May 2, 2021 our current membership is 176 

 

Memorial Gifts & Bequest Fund Committee Report - Submitted by Pastor Gerry Godfrey  

The Memorial Gifts Committee did not meet since Fall Council meeting.  The committee reminds 

students to continue to get their volunteer hours in in order to apply by June 30, 2021, for the 

available scholarship.  Any student who is graduating from high school can apply for a scholarship 

to their 2-year or 4-year college/trade school program. 

Amount in Brethren Foundation for Memorial Gifts and scholarships as of 3/31/21 is $93,997. 

 

Women’s Fellowship - Submitted by Lona Bridenbaugh, President  

 We had a successful Soup & Baked Good’s Sale on November 14, 2020 

 Due to COVID 19 we have not been able to meet or have social events. 

 

Youth Report - submitted by Pastor Gerry  

Since October 21, 2020, the youth have met the second Sunday of November, December, January, 

February, March, April and May. We did a variety of events from fundraisers, to scavenger hunts to 

mini golf, meeting the needs of those who were able to clear their schedules. Events since November 

2020: 

 scavenger hunt at Codorus State Park                                                                                                

 youth wrapped shoeboxes                                                                                                                          

 participated in “hanging of the greens”                                                                                     

 baked cookies for truck stop ministry                                                                                

 held “Valentine Pops Fundraiser” and raised $418                                                        

 held a soup n salad fundraiser and raised $345                                                                       

 painted eggs for eggstravaganza                                                                                                       

 hid eggs and handled the eggstravaganza egg hunt with 6 months to 5th graders                                                                    



17 

 

 as a thank you to the youth for all their hard work, we went mini golfing                                                                                

 May 9  “Youth Sunday,” youth participated in morning worship                                       

 youth helped with the Sunday school younger children 

Thank you to Bailey, Adam, Derek, Lily, Ariana for all your help! 

     CHRISTIAN ED PROVIDES SCHOLARSHIPS TO CAMP EDER $150/PP  

THANK YOU TO THE CONGREGATION FOR YOUR SUPPORT OF THE YOUTH AND 

THEIR FUNDRAISERS! 

The youth Advisor Team, 

Rebecca Sowers,  Andy McDonald, Amy Despines and Pastor Gerry 

 

“GLOW GROUP” for Fourth and Fifth Graders - submitted by Pastor Gerry  

The Glow group was developed in order to keep the younger youth interested in church and 

enjoying the fellowship of a group.  We have had 5 youth participate.  The GLOW group has 

activities, games, spiritual time and is in mission to others in the church.  Leaders of the group 

are: Pastors Dick and Gerry and Melissa Godfrey.  The group since last November participated 

in: 

 hanging of the greens and decorating the “giving tree” in the narthex 

 packing a Samaritan’s purse shoebox  

 packed snack/craft bags for eggstravaganza                                                                              

 held scavenger hunt                                                                                                                           

 helped to serve at senior citizen’s dinner 
 
 

 

NEW BUSINESS  
 

1. Approval of changes to child protection policy (See pages 18 to 23.) 

2. Prioritize facility needs  

  Sound System for fellowship hall 

 Exterior Electrical Outlets 

 Clean pew upholstery 

 2nd floor flooring replacement 

 Electronic church sign 

 Canopy/Portico  



18 

 



19 

 



20 

 



21 

 



22 

 



23 

 

 



24 

 
 Your Suggestions for Candidates to Serve as Deacons 

The deacon body values your participation in calling persons to become deacons.  These may 

be individuals or couples, but each person must be a member of the Hanover Church of the 

Brethren.  We will consider who you’ve listed, as we prayerfully consider who is ‘being called’ 

to best serve the congregation.  

The names of those who accept the ‘call to be a deacon’ will be brought to the Fall Council for 

affirmation.    

 

1. ______________________________________________________________ 

2. ______________________________________________________________ 

3. ______________________________________________________________ 

4. ______________________________________________________________ 

5. ______________________________________________________________ 

________________Your Suggestions for Candidates to Serve as Deacons 

The deacon body values your participation in calling persons to become deacons.  These may 

be individuals or couples, but each person must be a member of the Hanover Church of the 

Brethren.  We will consider who you’ve listed, as we prayerfully consider who is ‘being called’ 

to best serve the congregation.  

The names of those who accept the ‘call to be a deacon’ will be brought to the Fall Council for 

affirmation.    

 

1. ______________________________________________________________ 

2. ______________________________________________________________ 

3. ______________________________________________________________ 

4. ______________________________________________________________ 

5. ______________________________________________________________ 


